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From:

To: Rod Carr

ca Jo Hendv; § 9(2)(a) " § 9(2)(a) ~ @mfe.govtnz; S 9(2)(a)

Subject: RE: Climate Change Commission - Extension to the Statutory Deadlines for Emissions Budgets

Date: Friday, 10 July 2020 2:57:53 pm
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Letter from Dr Rod Carr to Minister James Shaw - Extension to the statutory deadlines for emissions budgets - 24
June 2020.pdf
Final letter to the Commission extending the timeframes.pdf

Kia ora Rod,

Thank you for your letter of 24 June, seeking an extension to the statutory deadlines for emissions
budgets and the emissions reduction plan.

Please find attached a letter from Minister Shaw formally granting the extension! @3 :

Many thanks,
s 9(2)(a)

s 9(2)(a)

| Private Secretary,

Office of Hon. James Shaw
Minister for Climate Change | Ministe

Level 7, Bowen House, Parliame Wellington 6160 | New

Zealand
E:S 9(2)(a)
P:s 9(2)(a)

ssee. It may be legally privileged. If you are not the
age or the information in it as this may be unlawful. If

.govt.nz>; Jo Hendy
sovt.nz>; S 9(2)(a) climatecommission.govt.nz>;

@mfe.govt.nz>; S 9(2)(a) @mfe.govt.nz>

s9 .
Sub Ifmate Change Commission - Extension to the Statutory Deadlines for Emissions Budgets
g pra James

Please find attached letter from the Climate Change Commission to seek an extension to the Statutory
Deadlines for Emissions Budgets.

| look forward to discussing this further with you.
Nga mihi
Rod

Dr Roderick Carr| Chair
Climate Change Commission Board






Level 21/1 Willis Street www.climatecommission.govt.nz
Wellington 6011, New Zealand enquiries@climatecommission.govt.nz

Hon James Shaw

Minister for Climate Change
Parliament Buildings
Wellington

24 June 2020 @ @ >
Dear Minister Shaw @@ @ ;

| am writing to formally request amendments to t @) adlines fo b gets and

other requested work in light of the effects of i . R

The Commission proposes the following timef or approval;

e The Commission will issue @ eport on the p three emissions budgets and
emissions reduction pl sult on that draft report.

e The Ministry for (the ironment wil
consultation proe
raised.

e TheCo

officials attending the Commission’s

| €00

v nment can hear and understand the issues

i ill provide itsfi t on the first three emissions budgets and the emissions
o you by 31

o) ission will also pro dvice on potential reductions in biogenic methane and New

@ d’s Nationally Determined Contribution that you have requested by 31 May 2021.

Now that w, € gvel 1 for Covid-19, the Commission is confident that our consultation and

engage roc s can support the development of high-quality analysis and advice to the
Gowv

©‘ fs sinCerely
Dr Rod Carr

Chair, Climate Change Commission
On behalf of the Climate Change Commission



Hon James Shaw

Minister for Climate Change Minita mo Te Rerekétanga o Te Ahuarangi
Minister of Statistics Minita Tatauranga
Associate Minister of Finance Hoa Minita Tahua Moni

Dr Rod Carr
Chair
Climate Change Commission

10 July 2020

Dear Rod,

e e agreed t

Reference: 20-M-01271

Thank you for your letter of 24 June to for an exte % tatutory
deadlines for emissions budgets and ot ed wor id-19.
\ .

With respect to the statutory deadti
Commission to provide its fipdl

on the flrst th
emissions reduction plan i

ions budgets and the
ring the new deadline into

force has been submi : jon i wZealand Gazette on 14 July 2020.

With respect t iti ieCe dvice | have requested on biogenic
methane an ationally Detd ed Contnbutlon the timing for these was

ded to 31 May 2021.

alread de with the. ady
dead@ ore no also \;

rletter als s that the Commission will issue a draft report on the
emissions bu issions reduction plan by 1 February 2021, and that officials
will part|C| ate(as ers in the Commission’s consultation on the draft report.

our reassurance of the Commission’s consultation and engagement,
analysis and advice to the Government within the new timeframes.

@U noa na,

Cn

Hon. James Shaw
Minister for Climate Change

+64 4 817 8725 Private Bag 18041, Parliament Buildings, Wellington 6160, New Zealand

ﬂ j.shaw@ministers.govt.nz ﬂ beehive.govt.nz
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s 9(2)(a)

From:
Sent: Thursday, February 11, 2021 5:49 PM
To: Michael Sharp
Subject: RE: [UNCLASSIFIED] Paris Agreement - NDC - Domestic Mitigation
[UNCLASSIFIED]
Hi Michael
Yes, article 4(2) does say parties need to take action at home. @ &
However Article 6 explicitly allows for countries to trade mitigation in nationally mined contributiq Q

you can use traded mitigation to meet it so long as you are usingittoi qur ambition not do hoét

together, we read that as Article 4 saying you must take some action at home;with awiew to achieving
! o

home. I've pasted the wording of Article 6 (1)-(3) below (apologies fo
not text readable)

ag versi ris Agreement is
New Zealand is complying with Article 4(2) through the i ::ets proce %e:re taking action on
domestic emissions and removals, and offshore mi\@ us to incre rall ambition beyond our

e

domestic budgets consistent with Article 6.

I, 16S X ze that %‘lics choose to pursue voluntary cooperation
in the i» fation of % onally determined contributions to allow for
higher~ ot ir myyigation and adaptation actions and to promote
sustarabledevelop environmental integrity.

2, Part @\;here engaging on a voluntary basis in cooperative approaches

that i € use of internationally transferred mitigation outcomes towards
natiQ termined contributions, promote sustainable development and ensure

ental integrity and transparency, including in governance, and shall apply
r accounting to ensure, inter alia, the avoidance of double counting, consistent

with guidance adopted by the Conference of the Parties serving as the meeting of
the Parties to this Agreemenlt.

3, The use of internationally transferred mitigation outcomes lo achieve
nationally determined contributions under this Agreement shall be voluntary and
authorized by participating Parties.

Regards



s 9(2)(a)

/f’\\ / s 9(2)(a) Principal Analyst
, 59%)@

He Pou a Rangi

. o climatecommission.govt.nz
Climate Change Commission

[UNCLASSIFIED] &5% @
From: Michael Sharp S 9(2)(a) @michaelsharp.co.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 11 February 2021 5:15 pm
To: S 9(2)(a) cllmatecommlsswn govt.n @
&lcle of the Paris agreement which

eet our NDC. Are you interpreting “with

i s 9(2)(a)

further to our discussion on the

seems to suggest that we nee stic igation
the aim of achieving” as a@ e add|t|o

itigation?
(a) Article 4 ( shaII %ommumcate and maintain successive nationally determined
contri mtends t rties shall pursue domestic mitigation measures, with the aim of

objectlve suc butions.

Michael Sharp — Bar rlste

s 9(2)(a)

E; E: S 9Qxa)@michaelsh@.co.nz W: www.michaelsharp.co nz
Mauao Legal Chambers

M: S 9(2)(a).

From: S 9(2)(@) @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 6 November 2020 4:24 pm

To: Rod Carr <Roderick.Carr@climatecommission.govt.nz>; Jenny Cooper S 9(2)(a) @shortlandchambers.co.nz>;
Michael Sharp s 9(2)(2) @michaelsharp.co.nz>; James Every Palmer QCS 9(2)(@) (@stoutstreet.co.nz>; Bryce
Lyall s 9(2)(a) @lyallthornton.com>

Subject: [UNCLASSIFIED] MfE analysis of NDC

[UNCLASSIFIED]

Kia ora koutou



Thanks for taking the time to meet with us this afternoon.

As | mentioned, earlier this year the Ministry for the Environment analysed the compatibility of the existing NDC with 1.5
degree pathways. Their briefing has been published on their website at the link below. While it glosses over any
considerations of New Zealand's relative contribution, it does usefully describe how the emission reductions modelled
by the IPCC at a global level can be downscaled to New Zealand.

apers-and-related-material-search/briefing-notes/scientific-analysis-

Kind regards

Principal Analyst

W climatecommission.govt.nz




Out of Scope

Dear Rod

As Paul has said, I’'m President of Lawyers for Climate Action NZ, which is a greup of over 300 lawyers advioeating to
ensure NZ meets its commitments under the Paris Agreement and achieves‘netzero emissions as soon as flossible. We
would very much like the opportunity to meet with you and the rest éfthe Climnate Change Commission to discuss your
role under the Climate Change Response Act and your current work-on thefirst emissions pudget, ‘emissions reduction
plan, and review of the NDC.

By way of a quick introduction to our thinking on the Commissigh!srdle, as Pauldas\mentioned it below, we see this as
being defined by the purpose of the Climate Change.Respohse Act, as set out ins3 of.the Act. The first limb of that
purpose, as you know, is to provide a framework for\pelicies that contriblte to.the global effort under the Paris
Agreement to limit the global average tempefature increase to 1.5%Celsius\above pre-industrial levels. Everything that
is done under the Act, including by the CCE, must)be consistentwith\thiat purpose (see s3(2)).

Therefore, in producing its recommendations the”CCC needs._to take-into account not only the 2050 target but also the
need for NZ to pursue emissions cutsand‘adopt an NDC £onsistent,with NZ doing “its share” of the work to keep global
warming below 1.5C.

This is not only sound palicy,-butalegal requirement, inourview.

Please let me know when‘\wowgsuit you to.meet=u‘am’based in Auckland but happy to come down to Wellington and |
will try to makemyself available on a date that suits you and any other members of the Commission who would like to
attend. | woetld likely brifig one or two.of my fellow committee members to the meeting.

Kind regards
Jenny Cooper QC | Rresident
LAWYERS FORCLYMATE ACTION NZ INC.

T8 9(2) (@~ N\ S E admin@lawyersforclimateaction.nz Level 13, 70 Shortland Street PO Box 4338, Auckland 1140, New
Zealand www.lawyersforclimateaction.nz

[UNCLASSIFIED]
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s 9(2)(a)

From:
To: "Michael Sharp"
Cc: James Every-Palmer; Jo Hendy
Subject: RE: [UNCLASSIFIED] Gross-net accounting and the Kyoto Protocol
Date: Wednesday, 24 February 2021 10:30:00 am
Attachments: image003.png

image004.jpa

[UNCLASSIFIED]

Hi Michael

| think you’ve raised an important distinction.

When we talk about gross/net accounting we are talking about the appro

based on gross emissions, and using net emissions to meet it. That is nl

\ngthat
gross/net refers to. %
Separately from that, LULUCF accounting rules in some ca%Lée ;ome sets of € and

removals and differentiate between reporting and ssions. For == Kyoto
Protocol dictated that a subset of LULUCF activiti nted for (af, ati
reforestation and deforestation) while emissi er activitie and-uses are

reported, but not accounted for (pre-1990 nd, non-forest uc wetlands and
croplands). This basket of distinctions is lly referred t 0 try accounting or
LULUCF accounting. @

The rationale and co tu@x or the tw, % ey are often lumped together, but
they are separate’things: §

e current N% : w Zealand’s assumed accounting for the forestry and
i a

e sector witl be bas combination of the 2006 IPCC Guidance and the 2013

t, providing for Kyoto Protocol accounting approaches to be
e s inventory land based categories. New Zealand’s existing activity
start year g& ontinue to apply, ensuring continuity of action with previous

com %

|d read that as referring only to the accounting approaches to LULUCF and not to the
@ s/net approach to setting targets.

The NDC being net/net would be a major change from how the government has set and
communicated its targets in the past, and given surrounding material is not what the
government intended. | believe that the government intended to set the NDC on a gross/net
basis and believes it is implied in the language of applying the Kyoto Protocol accounting
approaches, and the language that refers to continuity of action with previous commitments. In

part — | can say that because | was working at MfE when the NDC was set, but you can look at
what the government has said and done outwardly as well for confirmation.

In both the first commitment period under the Kyoto Protocol and our 2020 target New
Zealand’s target was based on a gross/net approach. For the 2020 target, that was taken outside



the Kyoto Protocol but we said that we would apply Kyoto methodologies, and that included the
gross/net approach to setting the budget. That the 2020 target was done outside the Kyoto
Protocol but applied Kyoto methodologies is a strong precedent for the NDC. You can read about
that in the initial report MfE issued.
https://www.mfe.govt.nz/sites/default/files/media/Climate%20Change/New%207Zealand%275%2

Olnitial%20Report%20July%202016.pdf

Secondly — the government talks about the target as if it is gross/net.

On the MfE website it refers to our 2030 target as “New Zealand’s target under the Paris
Agreement is to reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 30 per cent below gross emissi
period 2021-2030.” [emphasis added]

www.mfe.govt.nz/climate-change/climate-change-and-

ns for the

eporting against o
jOn-targets/projecte

emissions) MfE describes the current emissions bud V k -e.
This is the figure that you reach if you calculate t @s budget b he-gross/net
approach, using the inventory from 2019 rotocol calc n hodologies. Any
other approach will reach a different figure.
9 2005 levels (equivalent to
a rgets referenced above). Both
s (both ours previously and other

the targets are based on gross

argets, and the government’s wider communications about the
roach, we’'d need some pretty good evidence to say that the current
0ss/net basis.

grget are basethon
NDC is not<§
%les

gross/net target setting and the rules applied to LULUCF, there are a range of
roaches available and countries are to some extent free to elect the approach for them. The
egime is more ‘elect and explain’ than a hard set of rules. If we were to say we were applying
the Kyoto ruleset and then we did something markedly different we would be called out for that.
But here we are applying the rules that were internationally agreed. We are unlikely to attract
criticism for using gross/net approach in the Kyoto Protocol. Instead, international attention will
be on the level of the NDC. That is where the main judgment arises.

| had a look at the UK and EU. The UK applies a net/net approach to setting its target. The UK
applying a net/net approach is consistent with the same Kyoto rules that specify that we take a
gross/net approach, as in the UK LULUCF was a net source of emissions in 1990. The EU updated
their NDC recently and say they are taking a gross/net approach
(https://www4.unfccc.int/sites/ndcstaging/PublishedDocuments/European%20Union%20First/E



U_NDC_Submission_December%202020.pdf), although it appears ambiguous to me whether
they actually mean that they are zeroing out pre-1990 forests as part of their baseline (what I've
referred to a LULUCF accounting) or whether the target itself is set on the basis of gross or net
emissions. However | would not be surprised if the EU did take a gross/net approach to setting
the target given that like NZ, in the EU LULUCF was a net sink in the base year, and the EU has
generally been very committed to applying Kyoto Protocol methodologies. This is the kind of
issue that will be elucidated through time through the international transparency and review
process.

Gross/net and the IPCC modelling

Where the consideration of gross/net makes the most difference for t ' vice @S t

sswwhether the

. g to 1.5 degrees

t bility with 1.5

I'level for W’
&that question we

d be set on the same
to do it, principally
sidering alternatives in our

done the most authoritative body of work on pathways to li
started there. Using that modelling we set a marker for w
looks like, if we were following the reductions mod
warming to 1.5 degrees.

In applying the IPCC’s modelling to Ne assess the sci
applied it on a gross/net basis — mostl we felt that

basis on which they are accou However there
applying it on a net/net b nd we're v
advice. @

We’ve clear ou that t rred approach and we’ll be looking closely at
that.
een tore the batk we get in your submission, and from others throughout
Itation befare'we finalise our advice to government.

s 9(2)(a) Principal Analyst
MSs 9(2)(a)

Es 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz
W climatecommission.govt.nz

=



[UNCLASSIFIED]

From: Michael Sharp s 9(2)(&) @michaelsharp.co.nz>

Sent: Saturday, 20 February 2021 11:35 pm

To:s 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Cc: James Every-Palmer S 9(2)(a) @stoutstreet.co.nz>; Jo Hendy
s9(2)(&) @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: [UNCLASSIFIED] Gross-net accounting and the Kyoto Protocol

ThanksS 9(2)(@) The 2011 UNFCCC technical paper you referred to at page 11 sets out the

gross- net approach to accounting for LULUFC — where you ignore the base year and account for
emissions as they occur (Article 3(3)) . It also notes that exception where there were'net

emissions in the base year where that net is counted as part of base year emissi icle 3(7)).
However, in NZ NDC this paper is not mentioned. @
What is detailed (Addendum 25 November 2015) is the 2006 IPCC-Guidanse\which set genera
rules around accounting for land use emissions) and the IPC Rrotocol Suppleme hic
oot
)

for the second commitment period changed the rules abo ing for fore
management activities but left gross- net accountin . 1990 forests un

example of a party to the Paris Agreeme have similarl

e@ s for the basey

It may be that in NZ there veloped c
and a gross net a base and ta

about this. importance of the issue would it be possible to ask
or clarificati% s their view on the correct interpretation of the NDC

Nowhere in the accounting methodologies, e NDC for L %& Kyoto
approach of using a gross emissions ba@ ted. And as | Aot elow, the EU is an

forestry but have still used net

i@n = Barrister
nceAve, PO Box 5111, Mount Maunganui 3116, New Zealand

:s 9(2)(a) E: s92)() (@michaelsharp.co nz W: www.michaelsharp.co.nz
From: S 9(2)(@) @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Sent: Friday, 19 February 2021 9:58 am

To: Michael Sharp S 9(2)(&) @michaelsharp.co.nz>

Cc: James Every-Palmer S 9(2)(a) @stoutstreet.co.nz>; Jo Hendy
s 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Subject: [UNCLASSIFIED] Gross-net accounting and the Kyoto Protocol



[UNCLASSIFIED]
Hi Michael
Just to follow up on our discussion last night.

The rule on using gross-net accounting for targets was actually included directly into the Kyoto
Protocol itself. It was reiterated in the guidance on converting targets to budgets described here
https://unfccc.int/sites/default/files/resource/docs/2010/tp/03r01.pdf (this is the technical
document | was referring to yesterday). Page 11 covers the rules for forestry, and the numerical
examples in Annex 2 reiterate that gross-net is the default in its approaches.

However the technical document is extremely cumbersome to follow and jargo he rule @3 't

is much more clearly articulated in the Kyoto Protocol itself —so I'd su start there.

and use chan@ “
' % ess land use

it re to Annex A, and
erpissions)

Article 3(7) — describes that targets are to b
change and forestry was a net source of\e
Annex A of the protocol describes the ¢ 0

Hope that helps! @@ %
Kind regards % @
s 9(2)(a) @ §%
% % 9(2)(a) | Principal Analyst
% Ms 9(2)(a)
' % ES 9(2)(@)

W climatecommission.govt.nz

@climatecommission.govt.nz

[UNCLASSIFIED]



From: Michael Sharp
To: s 9(2)(a)
Cc: Jenny Cooper; James Every-Palmer; Bryce Lyall (¢9®® @lyallthornton.com)
Subject: FW: [UNCLASSIFIED] Paris Agreement - NDC - Domestic Mitigation
Date: Thursday, 18 February 2021 12:33:46 am
Attachments: image003.png
image004.jpg
image005.png
image006.jpg
image001.jpg

Kia oras 9(2)(a) Thanks for getting back to me on this. We still have some continuing concerns over the CCC’s
approach to off shore mitigation. | will also make some comment on our ongoing concerns about the CCC’s gross — net
approach to assessing the requirements of the NDC.

Offshore Mitigation

| accept that Article 4 re the requirement to pursue domestic mitigation measures to meet the N
uncomfortably with the ability to access offshore credits under Article 6. This appears to b r
being unable to agree a framework around offshore credits.

the Article 4 requirements re domestic mitigation and
‘ambitious efforts’. It will be made clearer when the

is that offshore mitigation under Article 6 is onl be
efforts at home.

In any case given that unders5
effectively means that the e

ill be ambitious to have a 2030 NDC averaging 58.5 and budget
other day.

rget
% i he CCC using a gross- net approach to assessing NZ's NDC upon the following

e net additions to emissions from forestry.

have looked into the points you have raised but still have some ongoing concerns which we would appreciate your
further response to.

With regard to your first point about Kyoto accounting, we accept that under the NDC as it stands it has been signalled
NZ’s approach to accounting for forestry and other land will be continued. But the Kyoto accounting for forestry does
not relate to quantifying targets — it set out how forestry and other land use emissions are to be accounted for.

Under these rules —as adopted in the second commitment period- emissions from forests established after the base
year are accounted for as they arise — either as sinks or emissions- during the target period. Forestry and other land use
emissions in the base year are ignored — as contrasted with the alternative net-approach of comparing forestry
emissions during the target period with those during the base year. Because of this difference the Kyoto approach to
new forests is known as ‘gross-net’.

With forests established before the base year, NZ's NDC has signalled that the Kyoto accounting approach of ‘business




as usual’ — with forestry and other land use emissions during the target period being compared with ex-ante estimates
of emissions on a business as usual basis and the difference at the end of the period being accounted for as forestry
and other land use emissions for the period.

NZ’s continuation of Kyoto accounting rules under the NDC is not unusual. For example, the EU has taken a similar
approach, including gross- net accounting for new forestry activity.

What is unusual is the approach taken by the CCC in adopting a ‘gross-net” approach to calculating what emissions the
NDC target equates to- by taking gross total (not just forestry) emissions in the base year and applying the % reduction
commitment to arrive at a emission target which is treated as net emissions in the target years.

This is completely different to the Kyoto rules for gross- net accounting for forests i.e. it does not relate to how forestry
emissions are calculated but rather to how overall emission target are calculated.

As such the CCC gross- net approach to calculating NZ’s NDC targets is not in accordance with thet

we follow the logic of this unofficial policy. It is correct that under the Kyoto Protocol targ aih effect gross- ne
that units assigned were calculated upon the basis of a % reduction from base g ions but that forestry

a ppli

units were applied to reduce emissions in calculating emissions over the
to all participants- not just NZ.

By contrast the Paris Agreement calls for nationally determi
removals (Article 4(13))- in other words net emissions. b nting for
removals in the base year. As such, as far as we awa ts asbeing a reduction in
net emissions (with the possible exception of Ru§sia). i e i opting a gross- net

issions and

In this regard we have issues wit er In adopting a gross -net approach to
the NDC target because it is oRe sink. From the indicated outcomes of
participants in the Kyoto Pfofaco jori : Juctions in emissions from forestry and land other

is could justify NZ adopting such a different

approach to caleutjati .

In this réspect at under th accounting for the NDC should Parties “shall promote
enyitenmental i Tity, transparency, , completeness, comparability and consistency” (Article 4(13)). NZ
2 ing’it

nique gross,Anet appr accounting for its NDC target would seem to offend against all these

particular, it wo ake NZappear to be doing better than it actually is as compared to the other

using the no net- oach.
We also have j ith\ygur claim that a gross- net approach to the NDC target is necessary to deal with abnormal
forestry outc in the'base year. The same issue can arise with abnormal target years. Also, as the CCC has noted
itself ith NZ adopting a target which is an average over 9 years, this will in itself iron out any
ab a and target years. We also note that 2005 being the base year for the NDC the emissions from
es atively normal.

nderlying concern we have with the gross- net approach to our target is that it vastly underestimates what NZ
eeds to do by 2030 to be 1.5 degrees consistent. In the CCC report it calculates that on a gross net basis the NZ NDC at
2030 is an average of 58.5 and that to be 1.5 degree consistent it only needs to drop to 56.4 (Advice p 157-8). But if we
apply the NDC target to the 2005 net of 53.5 we get a 30% reduction to 37.5. If we apply the SR15 1.5 2030
requirements to the 2010 net we get 35. Achieving results in these regions will set NZ well on the way to being 1.5
compliant by 2050. By contrast the CCC figures will set NZ for a big mountain to climb (or cut) by 2050.

Looking forward to speaking some time tomorrow as per your email of earlier today.
Regards

Michael Sharp — Barrister
s 9(2)(a)

M:S 9(2)(a) S 9(2)(a) @michaelsharp.conz W: www.michaelsharp.co.nz



\ f ;1@climatecommission.govt.nz>
Sent: Thurs&é;, 11 February 2021 5:49 pm

To: Michael Sharp$ 9(2)(@) @ michaelsharp.co.nz>

Subject: RE: [UNCLASSIFIED] Paris Agreement - NDC - Domestic Mitigation

[UNCLASSIFIED]
Hi Michael
Yes, article 4(2) does say parties need to take action at home.
However Article 6 explicitly allows for countries to trade mitigation in nationally determined con 9 d
together, we read that as Article 4 saying you must take some action at home, with a view, i NDC, but

you can use traded mitigation to meet it so long as you are using it to increase your a

not text readable)

n st 80 nothing at
home. I've pasted the wording of Article 6 (1)-(3) below (apologies for the image — my ver. of the Paris Agreeme»
re t

New Zealand is complying with Article 4(2) through the emission budge S ere we a

domestic emissions and removals, and offshore mitigation allo

domestic budgets consistent with Article 6. x
Text, letter@ @ Description automatically generated : S

Regards

_ | Principal Analyst




[UNCLASSIFIED]

From: Michael Sharp$ 9(2)(8) @michaelsharp.co.nz>
Sent: Thursday, 11 February 2021 5:15 pm

To:s9(2)(@) = @climatecommission.govt.nz>
Subject: [UNCLASSIFIED] Paris Agreement - NDC - Domestic Mitigation
Hi § 9(2)(@) further to our discussion on the LZANZI meeting today this is the Article of the Paris agreement

which seems to suggest that we need domestic mitigation measures to meet our NDC. Are you interpreting
“with the aim of achieving” as allowing for the addition of offshore mitigation?

(a) Article 4 (2) Each Party shall prepare, communicate and maintain successiv ti etermined
contributions that it intends to achieve. Parties shall pursue domestic mitigafi the aim of
achieving the objectives of such contr butions. %

Michael Sharp — Barrister @@
ww.miohaglsha;

9 Prince Ave, PO Box 5111, Mount Maunganui 3116, New Zealand

@shortlandchambers.co.nz>;
@stoutstreet.co.nz>; Bryce
Lyall

&Y

or taking the ti ONg us this afternoon.

As | mentioned/€arli s year the Ministry for the Environment analysed the compatibility of the existing NDC with
1.5de ay ir briefing has been published on their website at the link below. While it glosses over any
at Zealand's relative contribution, it does usefully describe how the emission reductions modelled
a

global level can be downscaled to New Zealand.
w.mfe.govt.nz/more/briefings-cabinet-papers-and-related-material-search/briefin

Kind regards

EDDA4B20 §9(2)(@ | Principal Analyst
MS9@)E)
E §9(2)(@) " @climatecommission.govt.nz
W climatecommission.govt.nz




s\Paul has said, I'm President of Lawyers for Climate Action NZ, which is a group of over 300 lawyers advocating to
nsure NZ meets its commitments under the Paris Agreement and achieves net zero emissions as soon as possible. We
would very much like the opportunity to meet with you and the rest of the Climate Change Commission to discuss your
role under the Climate Change Response Act and your current work on the first emissions budget, emissions reduction
plan, and review of the NDC.
By way of a quick introduction to our thinking on the Commission’s role, as Paul has mentioned it below, we see this as
being defined by the purpose of the Climate Change Response Act, as set out in s3 of the Act. The first limb of that
purpose, as you know, is to provide a framework for policies that contribute to the global effort under the Paris
Agreement to limit the global average temperature increase to 1.5° Celsius above pre-industrial levels. Everything that
is done under the Act, including by the CCC, must be consistent with that purpose (see s3(2)).
Therefore, in producing its recommendations the CCC needs to take into account not only the 2050 target but also the
need for NZ to pursue emissions cuts and adopt an NDC consistent with NZ doing “its share” of the work to keep global
warming below 1.5C.
This is not only sound policy, but a legal requirement, in our view.
Please let me know when would suit you to meet — | am based in Auckland but happy to come down to Wellington and |




will try to make myself available on a date that suits you and any other members of the Commission who would like to
attend. | would likely bring one or two of my fellow committee members to the meeting.

Kind regards
Jenny Cooper QC | President

LAWYERS FOR CLIMATE ACTION NZ INC.
T4 9(2)(@)  Eadmin@lawyersforclim ion.nz Level 13, 70 Shortland Street PO Box 4338, Auckland 1140, New

Zealand www.lawyersforclimateaction.nz
[UNCLASSIFIED] 3 E@ &



From: James Every—PaImers 9(2)(a) @stoutstreet.co.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, 17 February 2021 8:57 pm

To: s 9(2)(a)

Cc: Jenny Cooper; Michael Sharp ® 9(2)(3)@michaelsharp.co.nz); Bryce Lyall; Jo Hendy

Subject: Re: [UNCLASSIFIED] RE: Request for meeting

Out of Scope

From: S 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz> @ ‘ ( E : s
Date: Wednesday, 17 February 2021 at 6:07 PM

To: S 9(2)(@) @climatecommission.govt.nz s Every-Palmer %

s 9(2)(a) @stoutstreet.co.nz>

Cc: Jenny Cooper® 9(2)(a) @shortlandchambers.co.nz>, s 9(2)(a) Isharp.co.nz)"

$9(2)(@) @michaelsharp.co.nz>, Bryce Lyall $ 9(2)(")@Iy .com>, Jo
s9(2)(@) @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Subject: RE: [UNCLASSIFIED] RE: Request for

Kia ora James, Jenny, Michael and Bryce, @ @

Out of Scope @ @

Nga mihi @ @
s 9(2)(@) @ @

% § (2)(%

W climatecommission.govt.nz

From:S a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>
Sent: Monday, 15 February 2021 3:16 pm
To: James Every-Palmer$S 9(2)(a) @stoutstreet.co.nz>

Cc: Jenny Cooper S 9(2)(@) @shortlandchambers.co.nz>; Michael Sharp S 9(2)(2) @michaelsharp.co.nz)
s 9(2)(@) @michaelsharp.co.nz>; Bryce Lyall $ 22 @|yallthornton.com>; S 9(2)(a)

s 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>; Jo Hendy S 9(2)(@)  @climatecommission.govt.nz>
Subject: [UNCLASSIFIED] RE: Request for meeting

[UNCLASSIFIED]

Kia ora James



I’'m happy to follow up with you and have a discussion on those questions.

s 9(2)(2) do you mind following up with some possible times that Jo is available to join a discussion this week?
On the first question — if you’re referring to the graph in the slides from Thursday — that was showing our current NDC,
not a possible future NDC, which is why it looked higher than the IPCC range. Our assessment was that the current NDC
allowed more emissions than a target aligned with the midpoint of the IPCC range would, which is why we assessed it as
not compatible with contributing to the 1.5 degree goal.

The second question | think needs a bit more discussion so would be better to talk about in person.

Nga mihi

s 9(2)(a) @@ < § 3 )
{' {J?"" s 9(2)(@) | Princi@% @
n i ms 9(2)(@)
climate m @

- I$Sior/govt.nz
He PDI.I d Rangl chimatecommissioM\W : &

Climate Change Commission N

From: James Every-Palmer$S
Sent: Friday, 12 Februar 21
To:5 9@ i)
Cc: Jenny Cooper® St >; Michael Sharp 8 9(2)(@) @ michaelsharp.co.nz)
s 9(2)(a) a 0 e : Bryge Lyall 89@® @|yallthornton.com>; S 9(2)(@)

s 9(2)(a) % atecommov z>; Jo Hendy S 9(2)(@ @climatecommission.govt.nz>

Subject: R st for me

Kia ora s 9(2)(a) @
Just following\up'on\two questions from yesterday relating to the Commission’s assessment of the maximum allowable

e NDC period (ie 564 Mt CO2e before taking into account what extra effort our fair share might

First, the graph comparing the NDC budget with the ZCA budgets showed the 2030 emissions under the NDC at around
57 Mt CO2e. We had thought this should be 52.3, being the midpoint between 45.029 and 59.491 as per page 9 of sup
chap 10? It would be helpful to understand the discrepancy.

Secondly, the IPCC found that net CO2 emissions should fall by 40 to 58% (interquartile range; 2030 relative to 2010).

At page 8 of sup chap 10, however, the Commission applies these reductions to our 2010 gross CO2 emissions (being
34,958 Mt) in order to set the 2030 target for net emissions (on a modified activity-based measure).



While we understand the rationale for gross:net in terms of how we express our NDC target (as per box 8.1 and sup
chap 3), the issue of whether the IPCC reduction percentages can be applied to gross CO2 emissions in 2010 is a
separate issue.

Our current view is that it is a mistake to apply the reductions to 2010 gross CO2 emissions as this will understate the
amount of additional ambition required by the IPCC. Rather, an adjustment is required to this base number to take into
account CO2 removal activity as at 2010 (perhaps on an averaged basis).

We understood you to disagree with this, but it would help us to work through the detail if we could have another
discussion or receive a short written explanation.

Thanks again for your time, we really appreciate the engagement given the complexity of getting to the bottom of these
issues.

& &

From: S 9(2)(@) @chmatecommls;(r@_\(\\@ @ §
Date: Wednesday, 10 February 2021 at 2:08 PM %

To: Jenny Cooper 8 92)(@  @shortlandchambers. a)

s 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt. nz%}?ﬁn s 9(2)(a)
Cc: James Every-Palmer S 9(2)(@) r
s 9(2)(a)

Subject: RE: Request for meetin

Thank you Jenny. @%

Nga mihi @ @

s 9(2)(a) @ %
<& S Q\S&)

(P

e ommission.govt.nz>
\Qfel Sharp
Lyall $9@@ @|yallthornton.com>

C

W climatecommission.govt.nz

From: Jenny CooperS 9(2)(@) @shortlandchambers.co.nz>
Sent: Wednesday, 10 February 2021 1:34 pm

To:S 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>; Jo Hendy S 9(2)(&) @climatecommission.govt.nz>;
s 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>
Cc: James Every Palmer QCS 9(2)(2) @stoutstreet.co.nz>; Michael Sharp S 9(2)(2)

@michaelsharp.co.nz>; Bryce Lyall®2@@ @|yallthornton.com>
Subject: RE: Request for meeting




Apologies, | have just realised that | mistakenly sent you a very marked up draft of our topics for discussion. Here is the
correct version.

Kind regards
Jenny

From: Jenny Cooper
Sent: Wednesday, 10 February 2021 9:45 AM

To:S 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>; Jo Hendy S 9(2)(@) @climatecommission.govt.nz>;
s 9(2)(a) @climatecommission.govt.nz>
Cc: James Every Palmer QCS 9(2)(a) @stoutstreet.co.nz>; Michael Sharp S 9(2)(2)

@michaelsharp.co.nz>; Bryce Lyall$%@® @|yallthornton.com>

Subject: RE: Request for meeting &
Dear Jo and S 9(2)(a)

Please find attached a note setting out our questions about the Commission’s dr Vi nd the topi I|ke

to discuss when we meet tomorrow. I'm afraid | will need to leave by 5.30p ut th hould stillallow time for
a good discussion.
Nga mihi

Jenny &
From: S 9(2)(a) @cllmatecorﬁ}n% vt.nz>

Sent: Tuesday, 9 February 2021 2:26 PM

To: Jenny Cooper S 9(2)(a) @shortlandcb@@ nz>; S 9(2)(a
s 9(2)(a) @climatecommissian @M Hendys 9 )G
Cc: James Every Palmer QCS 9(2)(

@michaelsharp.co.n% 39(2)(a)a jorr.com
s9(2)(a) @shortlandchartbers v
Subject: RE: Reques or @
Kia ora Jenn @ %

Out of Sco@ @%

In the mean@%ve any questions, please don’t hesitate to contact me.
s 9(2)(a)

(N\Y
He Pou a Rangi

Climate Change Commission

vI| atecommission.govt.nz>
ichael Sharp s 9(2)(a)
>; Joy Haswell

s 9(2)(a)

W climatecommission.govt.nz




From: Jenny Cooper- @shortlandchambers.co.nz>
Sent: Tuesday, 9 February 2021 2:23 pm

To: @climatecommission.govt.nz>;
@climatecommission.govt.nz>; Jo Hendy climatecommission.govt.nz>
Cc: James Every Palmer QC @stoutstreet.co.nz>; Michael Sharp_
@michaelsharp.co.nz>; Bryce Lyall @lyallthornton.com>; Joy Haswell

@shortlandchambers.co.nz>
Subject: RE: Request for meeting

We are hoping to circulate some notes for discussion ahead of our meeting - we wi
of tomorrow.

oY >

From: 8928 pcimatecommisin gt \
Sent: Tuesday, 9 February 2021 12:24 PM \\‘3
>I

To: Jenny Cooper A
o Hendy

-@michaelsharg.co.nv; B

Subject: RE: Request for meeting

Kia ora Jenny,

Nga mihi

[y
(NY

He Pou a Rangi

Climate Change Commission

W climatecommission.govt.nz

From: Jenny Cooper- shortlandchambers.co.nz>
Sent: Friday, 5 February 2021 4:57 pm



To: Anne Jonathan @climatecommission.govt.nz>;

@climatecommission.govt.nz>

_climatecommissmn.govt.nz>; Jo Hendy
Cc: James Every Palmer QC @stoutstreet.co.nz>; Michael Sharp_
-@michaelsharp.co.nz>; Bryce Lyall @lyallthornton.com>
Subject: RE: Request for meeting

I

Nga mihi

Jenny @
From:_@cIimatecommission.govt.nz> @
Sent: Wednesday, 3 February 2021 5:24 PM

@shortlandchambers.co.nz>;

To: Jenny Cooper

@climatecommission.govt.nz>; Jo Hend

Cc: James Every Palmer QC (@stoutstreet.co.
-@michaelsharp.co.nz>; Bryce Lyall @Ivallthornf\/

Subject: RE: Request for meeting

Nga mihi
H ngi
Clim ge Commission

W climatecommission.govt.nz

From: Jenny Cooper- @shortlandchambers.co.nz>

Sent: Wednesday, 3 February 2021 2:01 pm
To: @climatecommission.govt.nz>; Jo Hendy-@climatecommission.govt.nz>;

@climatecommission.govt.nz>
@stoutstreet.co.nz>; Michael Sharp _

@lyallthornton.com>

Cc: James Every Palmer QC
@michaelsharp.co.nz>; Bryce Lyall
Subject: Request for meeting




Kia ora$ 9(2)(@) and Jo

Congratulations on the launch of the Commission’s draft advice. It seems to have had an excellent reception so far. |
am following up on our meeting in early January to see if it would possible to arrange a time to talk next week. We can
send through some points for discussion once we have a date lined up, but in the meantime, one aspect we are
particularly keen to understand is how the recommended emissions budgets line up against the goal of 1.5C and
SR1.5. When | asked about this on the webinar on Sunday night, Dr Carr seemed to suggest that the domestic budgets
weren’t intended to and didn’t match the 1.5C target, but | think your answer to the same question in the online chat,
S 9(2)(a) | said that they do align with 1.5C.

We see this as an important issue and would really like to clarify whether the Commission does believe the
recommended budgets are consistent with 1.5C and, if so, the basis for this view. If not, it would be helpful to
understand what the Commission calculates the gap is between the budgets and what we would have to do to meet the
1.5C target solely on domestic reductions (assuming it is not simply a question of comparing the budget with the
recommended NDC).

Could you please let us know if there is a time next week that would suit you? @ &
Nga mihi @
Jenny

Jenny Cooper QC | President @:; >

LAWYERS FOR CLIMATE ACTION NZ INC.

T+59(2)(@) E admin@Ilawyersforclimateaction.nz @
Level 13, 70 Shortland Street

PO Box 4338, Auckland 1140, New Zealand
www.lawyersforclimateaction.nz




s 9(2)(a)

From:

Sent: Wednesday, 10 February 2021 5:14 pm

To: Jo Hendy; S 9(2)(@)

Subject: RE: Request for meeting sso@

Attachments: 2021-02-10 Lawyers for Climate Action NZ topics for meeting with CCC - comments.docx

[UNCLASSIFIED]

talking to at the meeting.

Happy to talk with you ahead of the meeting if you’d like. @ ; ;
Hope all’s well in Auckland. @@ @
Cheers @ @
s 9(2)(a) @
[U
From: Jenny Cooper S 9(2)(a) dchambers.co,nz
Sent: Wednesday, 10 F m
To:S 9(2)(a) @climat on.govt.nz>; Jo Hendy S 9(2)(@)  @climatecommission.govt.nz>;
s 9(2)(a) @climatez% ion.govt.nz>
Cc: James cs 9(2)(@) @stoutstreet.co.nz>; Michael Sharp S 9(2)(2)
@ arp.co.nz>)

$92@ @|yallthornton.com>
Subject: RE: uest for %

Apologies, | have@ at | mistakenly sent you a very marked up draft of our topics for discussion. Here is the

correct versi
Kind re @
Jenny

Hi Jo @
| put together some technical responses to Jenny Cooper’s issues/questions that& s\aStarting poi(ﬁ ior 3 )




[UNCLASSIFIED]

Lawyers for Climate Action NZ
Topics for discussion with Climate Change Commission on 11 Feb 2021

1. Are the ZCA budgets for 2022-25 and 2026-30 consistent with 1.5 degrees?

(a) 564 versus 628
e The NDC analysis concludes that IPCC SR2018 pathways for 1.5 with no or limited
overshoot require a budget of no more than 564 mT CO2e for 2021-30.
e Yet, the ZCA budgets will amount to 628 mT CO2e over this period.
e Are the figures in the NDC analysis and the ZCA budgets directly comparable? If not,
what are the differences? A\

\/ \/

\/
Assuming tha Ci') o-Sets of figu omparable, doesn’t the difference of 64
mT COx m;- at our ZCA u{;~ aréjinconsistent with Paris and SR2018?

@ transarency?

‘ \/
2 €o ssion considered whether domestic cuts consistent with SR2018 are
caI y\achievable and has it modelled the cost of these?

e Has

N

@ % Unless it has done so and it is not achievable and/or the cost is prohibitive, why

would th mmission pr r r than 564 mT CO2e?

e |n contrast, the Commission’s analysis at p155 about feasibility and the risk that
greater domestic cuts will lead to emissions leakage seems based on conjecture

[UNCLASSIFIED]



[UNCLASSIFIED]

(note, the same argument was considered and rejected by the Dutch Supreme Court
in The Netherlands v Urgenda).

e The NDC and ZCA budgets use different starting pai 2021 emissions (With t
NDC budget being based on our previous internatio t). Given't e

ultimately concerned with limiting cumulati issions, doe mission
accept that having higher actual emissia ouldn’t re§ more
generous budget for the rest of the decad ‘

2\

\7

® S conomic and diplomatic repercussions if
d’. I rt of SR2018 and the 1.5 goal?

a

heir NDCs. In the commission accepting that New Zealand will
to offshore mitigation it is also accepting that it New Zealand won’t
0 port?

e The reliance on offshore mitigation to meet the NDC seems risky given there is no
existing mechanism and no possible counterparties have been identified. Has the
Commission identified any countries likely to be in a position by 2030 to sell NZ their
excess emissions reductions while also meeting their own 1.5 obligations?

[UNCLASSIFIED]



[UNCLASSIFIED]

e While acknowledging the cost of offshore mitigation is uncertain, the mission
appears to assume that it will be cheaper than domestic action (p1 es the
Commission have any evidence to support that assumption?

need to take sufficient domestic action in due course to_get to

e Given the multiplier effect identified by the Commission (
it relatively unlikely that offshore mitigation will ultitnately be c eaper'-’ ;

o |f there is ng G ‘ at offshor on will be available, or cheaper,
wouldr’t %- dent to ass NDC will have to be met through domestic
acti {‘, ith ©ffshore mitigat back up or additional measure?

S

x >
lit=gas approach

Given the relatively high proportion of methane in NZ’'s emissions, a split-gas
approach produces a higher allowable level of emissions (564 versus 516 mT CO2e).

e But, will global aggregate reductions be achieved if each country can choose
whether to take a combined or split-gas approach? If each country chooses the
approach which produces the least ambition, then we fail in aggregate.

[UNCLASSIFIED]



[UNCLASSIFIED]

e Furthermore, is it right to say that the IPCC found that methane did not “need to be
reduced ... as deeply or as quickly as carbon dioxide” (p154)? Or was the IPCC simply
estimating what was likely to happen on a global average basis as a matter of fact?

o |Ifitis feasible i @ ne emissions, then doesn’t New
Zealand have @ he impact of methane on global
oframe?

ake. We would welcome a submission from you
sions should be reduced.

©§§ countries if we choose to use a split-gas approach rather than the more widely

accepted combined gas approach?

(d) Using SR2018 to set a 2030 target
e We understand the SR2018 1.5 pathway reductions to represent an increase in effort
relative to what was occurring in 2010 (that is, they are net:net).

[UNCLASSIFIED]
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e So, even if there are valid reasons for using gross:net to express our target, don’t we
have to adjust our 2010 gross figures for existing netting activity before applying the
SR2018 reductions? This adjustment could be on an averaged basis to avoid
particular year anomalies. Otherwise, the 2030 target amount will be insufficiently
ambitious.

2. The role of the ETS
e We agree that the ETS is not
emission reductions.

e Without addressing these issues, the ETS cannot cap annual emissions and is a
somewhat clumsy way to put a price on emissions that come within the ETS.

e Has the Commission considered the issues of (i) how to address the stockpile and (ii)
how to create a mechanism so that the ETS price responds to excess methane
emissions to ensure that the overall emissions target is not exceeded?

[UNCLASSIFIED]
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ithheld in full under s 9(2)(g)(i)

2 ithheld in full under s 9(2)(g)(i)





